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FOREWORD

It was clear from Tsountas’s first reports on his work to the SE of the Grave Circle (Tsountas
1886) that this area contained important buildings and unusual finds including an Egyptian
scarab of Queen Tiy, appliqués in ivory or gold leaf and the painted plaster plaque that seems to
depict the worship of a goddess. Wace recognised their importance and revisited this area with
further excavation in 1950.

The full publication of this work was entrusted to Barbara Craig in 1958 who, with the
resumption of excavation in 1959 by Taylour in cooperation with the Archaeological Society
represented by Papademetriou, conducted further tests while C.K. Williams prepared a new
detailed plan. Mylonas continued excavation between 1966 and 1972 (see below, p. 3). All
these excavations contributed more to the story of the development of the area and of the Cult
Centre, as Mylonas christened the complex following Taylour’s discovery of the Temple and
the Room with the Fresco (Mylonas 1972b).

However the full significance of Tsountas House and the Shrine, their role in the origin of the
Cult Centre outside the Citadel Wall and its subsequent history, have only become fully apparent
with the painstaking study presented in this fascicule by Dr Kim Shelton. She has carefully
assembled and exactingly analysed all the available information in order to trace the histories
of construction, repair and alteration of Tsountas House, situated on the two lowest terraces of
the slope, of the Tsountas House Shrine, on the upper Terrace, and of the interconnecting ramps
which form the ‘Processional Way’ which descended to the complex from the East.

On the basis of the reports and studies by Tsountas and Wace and analysis of the finds
made by Craig and Mylonas, Dr Shelton has been able to compile the first comprehensive
and detailed account of these discoveries. In the House itself, there were few finds to show its
function, but its quality and unusual internal features both demonstrate that it was a better than
average residence, whilst its location, opening on to the same courtyard which gave access
to all the cult rooms, makes the hypothesis that its occupants had some ritual responsibilities
entirely possible.

Most significantly, Dr Shelton has established beyond reasonable doubt that the Shrine
(also known as Shrine I') was the earliest cult installation constructed in this part of the site,
outside the circuit wall. She has shown that it continued to be used when the Temple and the
Room with the Fresco Complex were added to the N. These lay beyond an open courtyard
which could readily be reached by anyone from the town of Mycenae outside the Citadel
and which gave access to all the different parts of the cult complex. During this period, from
early in the 14th to the middle of the 13th century BC, the Shrine, equipped with a curiously
elaborate hearth or altar, provided an interior space for ritual activity and received valuable,
even exotic offerings.

This situation changed radically at some point after the middle of the 13th century BC when
both the Room with the Fresco and the Temple can be shown to have suffered serious damage,
perhaps as the result of an earthquake, and the West Circuit Wall was extended to the W to
enclose both the Grave Circle to the N and the whole Cult Centre (Wardle 2003; 2015). As a
result of these events, the whole character and focus of the Cult Centre changed, as can be seen
most clearly from the history of the Tsountas House Shrine set out in this fascicule. The Room
with the Fresco ceased to be used for cult purposes. The Temple was repaired but seems no
longer to have been important. The altar in the Tsountas House Shrine was covered by a new
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floor and replaced with a stone-built altar in the courtyard. An elaborate ‘Processional Way’
with a series of monumental gateways was constructed to lead up to (or down from) the Palace
on the summit of the Citadel and decorated for at least part of its length with a processional
fresco to match its function.

The orientation of those cult rooms which remained in use, including the Shrine, was now,
in the terms introduced by Hagg (1981), palatial and official rather than popular. Access was
restricted to those permitted entry to the Citadel and this arrangement continued until the
destruction of the whole of the area at the end of the 13th century BC. These conclusions will
require a radical reassessment of the nature and history of Mycenaean cult practice, since much
of the current discussion is still erroneously based on the belief that the Mycenae Cult Centre
was, from its creation, intra muros. Dr Shelton has demonstrated convincingly that the Cult
Centre was created for the wider Mycenae community and that the manner of its use changed
when it was incorporated into the Citadel.

E. B. French and K. A. Wardle

Very sadly, Lisa’s death in June at the age of 90, came before we could bring Tsountas House
to press. As in so many ways with younger colleagues, she had encouraged and supported
Kim Shelton’s work in the initial study, the elaboration of the text and the final stages of
editorial oversight. Like her father before her, she was always generous with her knowledge
and her time. She is already sorely missed as we continue the project she devised — the Well
Built Mycenae publication. No small thanks are due to her and to Linda Witherill for the
financial support which they have provided in recent years towards the completion of this
and other fascicules.

KAW October 2021
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(a) Aerial view of the Cult Centre (after Mylonas Guide, fig. 34; photograph: Whittlesey
Foundation, 1975); (b) Tsountas House area, showing the Shrine on the upper terrace of
the Cult Centre. From SW.
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